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D.E. Shaw Composite
International Fund L.P. -
Ordinary Series Restricted
(SOP) Jul 16

.00

605,002.

53

605,002.

53

9,677,690.

31

9,677,690.

18.

Tyrus Capital Event Fund
Ltd - Class A USD Voting
(Non-Restricted)

27,284.

84

116.

3,178,678.

164.

14

4,478,618.

A7

East Lodge Capital Credit
Opportunities Fund, Ltd -
Class B USD

4,000.

1,000.

4,000,000.

975.

3,903,408.

.38

CQS Directional
Opportunities Feeder Fund
Limited - Class B USD
Shares Non New Issues

744.

1,652.

1,229,346.

28

5,208.

3,875,031.

.33

Davidson Kempner
International, Ltd. - Class
C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan
2016

22,610

.49

126.

2,864,859.

171

.06

3,867,653.

.32

ENA Opportunity Offshore
Fund Ltd - Class C Shares
Restricted Series Jan 16

4,000.

1,000.

4,000,000.

956.

3,825,589.

.24

Beach Point Total Return
Offshore Fund I, Ltd. -
Series V - 01 Nov 2007

2,521.

1,119.

2,823,958.

68

1,508.

3,803,363.

.19

Davidson Kempner
International, Ltd. - Class
C Tranche 4 - 01Jan16 (SOP)

28,857

.44

100.

2,885,744.

127.

51

3,679,487.

.96

JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd.
- Class C Restricted

4,000.

1,000.

4,000,000.

917

.80

3,671,200.

.94

10

Starboard Value and
Opportunity Fund Ltd. -
Class A Series 92

1,350.

2,499.

3,375,802.

80

2,389.

3,227,921.

11

11

Third Point Ultra Ltd. -
Class C - Series 8

418.

4,844.

2,029,100.

83

5,128.

2,148,210.

.06

12

Marcato International Ltd -
Class B Sub Class Bl
Initial Series

1,224.

1,655.

2,027,771.

15

1,585.

1,941,374.

76

.67

13

ENA Opportunity Offshore
Fund Ltd - Class C Shares
Restricted Series 1 Dec 15

1,500.

1,000.

1,500,000.

955.

1,432,912.

.71

14

Paulson Enhanced Ltd -
Class BR Series 081401 HH -
Lot 48670481

25,000.

00

100.

2,500,000.

52.

1,310,666.

.48

15

Third Point Ultra Ltd. -
Class D - Series 22

1,074.

1,000.

1,074,156.

1,114.

48

1,197,130.

.26

16

Third Point Ultra Ltd. -
Class C - Series 12 NI

555.

1,112.

16

618,301

.45

1,136

.02

631,566.

96

.19

17

Davidson Kempner
International, Ltd. - Class
C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan
2016 NI

358.

399.

93

143,193.

52

521.

73

186,802.

10

.35

18

AG Super Fund International
Ltd. - SOP Class XXXX
Series 1

.01

1,546.

42

9,294.

1,606.

98

9,657.

.02

19

AG Super Fund International
Ltd. - SOP Class XXXX
Series 2

.14

1,543.

97

7,936.

1,605.

12

8,250.

.02
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HSBC
)
20 601,665,000.00 62,080 113.23 11,683
” 290,572,000.00 29,981 78.79 8,130
- 304,090,009.72 31,376 99.12 10,227
’3 244,549,884 .22 25,233 98.58 10,171
y 105,144,171.21 10,849 101.25 10,447
- 82,838,978.49 8,547 119.30 12,309
26 75,327,234.72 7,772 133.82 13,808
97 66,098,117.17 6,820 140.20 14,466
- 56,903,578.21 5,871 134.73 13,901
27 57,144,052.22 5,896 130.79 13,495
10 55,885,654.74 5,766 133.85 13,811
11 55,133,151.25 5,689 132.27 13,648
12 52,178,075.70 5,384 130.76 13,492
28 56,868,029.48 5,868 127.23 13,128
56,448,257.71 5,824 126.29 13,031
59,792,000.66 6,169 133.52 13,777
56,903,578.21 5,871 134.73 13,901
57,154,068.30 5,897 135.48 13,979
56,336,337.16 5,813 133.56 13,781
52,339,790.92 5,400 136.05 14,038
52,870,275.21 5,455 137.41 14,178
HSBC 23 9 30
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4,737,826.52 230,352.94 4,507,473.58

187,964.07 0 187,964.07
310,168.94 1,702,657.10 3,114,985.42

14,091.91 38,272.77 163,783.21

22,025.41 490,166.16 2,646,844.67

5,324.45 23,195.70 145,911.96
9,178.26 489,428.98 2,166,593.95

©) (12,734.60) (133,177.36)

0 1,261,552.69 905,041.26

©0) (73,809.92) (59,367.44)

0 264,140.63 640,900.63

©) (17,241.93) (42,125.51)

20,856.13 134,173.32 527,583.44

©0) (13,040.27) (29,085.24)
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2016 30
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60,056 6,197 71,912 7,420
93 10 510 53
62 6 23 2
155 16 533 55

60,211 6,213 72,445 7,475

(3,307) (341) (6,347) (655)

(3,307) (341) (6,347) (655)

56,904 5,871 66,098 6,820
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2016 30
2016 2015 30
4 0
(1,295) (134) 3,882 401
11 (75) ®) (85) )
(980) (101) (1,329) (137)
(1,055) (109) (1,414) (146)
(2,346) (242) 2,468 255
2016 4 30
2016 4 30 2015 4 30
66,098 6,820 75,327 7,772
5,018 1,287
(11,866) (1,224) (12,984) (1,340)
(6,848) (707) (11,697) (1,207)
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2016 30 2015 30
9,545 6,311
(240) (188)
(10,636) (1,409)
85 (923)
(49) 91
(1,295) 3,882
12
2016 30 2015 30
(843) (1,178)
i} )
(843) (1,183)
(59) (71)
19 19)
59 (56)
(78) (75)
(980) (1,329)

64/168



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2007 HSBC
HSBC
1.65
842,352 2015 1,177,500
2015

HSBC HSBC

12

10 2015 5,340
2015 139,741

HSBC C.l. HSBC
0.10
58,890 2015 71,364
2015

2016 30 2015 30
- 445
12 17 65
76 -
93 510

2016 30 2015 30

62 23
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HSBC C.I.
2016 30 A 2015
A+ HSBC
2016 30 Al 2015 30 Aa3
2016 30 2015 30
11 (3,305) (6,186)
i} (140)
@ (21)
(3,307) (6,347)
HSBC 1989
1,200
2015 1,200
10
2015
453,243.20 17,156.14 470,399.34
32,486.50 5,665.80 38,152.30
(84,512.15) (3,066.60) (87,578.75)
2016 30
401,217.55 19,755.34 420,972.89
2014
527,583.44 27,071.90 554,655.34
9,391.42 - 9,391.42
(83,731.66) (9,915.76) (93,647.42)
2015 30
453,243.20 17,156.14 470,399.34
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2016 4 30
2015 4 30

2014 4 30

11
HSBC

HSBC

HSBC
3,305,000
9.36
1.6700

54,055 2,849

63,544 2,554

70,601 4,726

C.l1.
C.1.
5.81 2015
75,446 2015
2015 1.0200

67/168

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

56,904
66,098
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2016

2016

2016

2015

2015

2015

13

30

31

31

30

29

29

HSBC

2,458,962

20,572

HSBC

2,281,564

4,217

2,783,557

23,311

2,493,681

3,867
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2016 30
- 2,824 2,824
2015 30
- 2,555 2,555
2016 30
A 2015 A+
HSBC
2016 31 Al 2015 31 Aa3
2015
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C.1.

15 15%

2016 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment
Paulson Enhanced Ltd. - Class BR -Series 081401 HH

2015 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment
Paulson Enhanced Ltd. - Class BR -Series 081401 HH
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FRS 102 11.27
FRS 102
@)
2016 30
1 2 3
- 60,038 18 60,056
- 17 - 17
- 60,055 18 60,073
2015 30
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1 2 3
- 71,886 27 71,913
- 65 - 65
- 71,951 27 71,978
FRS 102
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3 3
27 29
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18 27
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FRS 102
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30 2015 30
0.8787 0.8918

FRS 102 2014

- 141.97 126.29

- 134.40 119.20

FRS 102 2014
2016
FRS 102 2015 30
30
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FRS 102
2015 4 30
2,468
FRS102
2,468
2015 4 30 2014 5 1
66,098 75,327
FRS102
66,098 75,327
FRS 102
FRS 102
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HSBC
2016 4 30
(2015 :-108.80%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - 6 10 0.02
Special Investment
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - 5 8 0.01
Special Investment
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 2,522 3,636 6.39
Nov 2007 GSY
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B 1,146 5,629 9.89
USD Shares Non New Issues
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st 1 11,317 19.88
Subscription
East Lodge Capital Credit Opportunities Fund - Class B 4,000 3,713 6.53
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares 1,500 1,453 2.55
Restricted Series 1 Dec 2015
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares 4,000 3,880 6.82
Restricted Series Jan 2016
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 358 181 0.32
1 Series 1 Jan 16 — GSY
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 22,610 3,757 6.60
3 Series 1 Jan 16 — GSY
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 28,857 3,571 6.28
4 Series 1 Jan 16 - GSY
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. Class C 4,000 3,873 6.81
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class Bl Initial 1,837 2,622 4.61
Series
Paulson Enhanced Ltd. - Class BR Series 081401 HH 25,000 1,389 2.44
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 2,001 4,602 8.09
92
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class E - GSY 2,842 943 1.66
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - GSY 419 1,958 3.44
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - Series 12 NI - GSY 556 576 1.01
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Series 22 - GSY 1,074 1,092 1.92
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 36,380 5,846 10.27
60,056 105.54
(2016 :108.80%) 60,056 105.54
(3,152) (5.54)
56,904 100.00
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2016 30 2015 30
134.73 140.20
126.72 132.77
2016 30 2015 30
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
2016 30 2015 30
59.60% 59.70%
28.20% 31.50%
12.20% 8.80%
100.00% 100.00%
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2016 4 30
East Lodge Capital Credit Opportunities Fund - Class B 4,000 4,000
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares Restricted 4,000 4,000
Series Jan 2016
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. - Class C 4,000 4,000
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares Restricted 1,500 1,500
Series 1 Dec 2015
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Series 22 1,074 1,074
D_E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st Subscription 0.284 3,700
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 2,253 3,478
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial Series 1,976 3,174
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares 596 2,750
Non New Issues
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 Nov 2007 1,760 2,497
GSY
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 1,570 2,427
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 16,170 2,397
Highland Crusader Fund 11 1 1,868
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Series 12,316 1,500
1 Jan 16 - GSY
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class F - Series 1 3,410 1,074
Aderans - Common Stock 40,000 226

2016 30
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HEBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT AS AT 30 APRIL 2016

As al As at
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
Asgsels Mates uss'ooo USE000 USS'000 USE000
Current Assets
Portfolio of Investments 60,056 71912
Debtors -] 83 510
Cash and cash equivalents T 62 23
_ 155 533
Total assats 80,211 72,445
Liabilities
Craditors: amounts falling due within
One year 3 (3,307) {B,347)
Total Liabilties 3307 (6,347)
Mat assels allribulable to the holders of
redeamable participating units 56,904 66,098

The consolidated financial statements on pages 11 to 27 were approved by the manager, HSBC Managemant
(Guemnsey) Limiled, on  #t- w 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mainl

[Mame 1 be updated]

M7 &ﬂj

[Name to be updated)

Tha notes on pages 13 o 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

81/168



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2016

Yaar Ended Year Ended
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
Motes  US5'000 LUS3'000 USE'000 USE'000

Income 4 s
Mat capital (losses)ygains 3 (1.295) 3,882
Interest expense 11 (78] {85)
Operating expenses 4 (9&0) (1,329)
Met expenses 1,055 (1.414)
Change in net assels attributable to the holders of
radeamable participating units from investment activities 2,348 2,468

All results are derived from continuing operations. The Fund has no items of other comprehensive income and tharefore
the change in net attributable to the holders of redeemabla participating wnits from invesiment activities reflacts the talal
comprehensive income for the period.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMWNT OF CHANGE IN NWET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2016

Year Ended Year Ended
30 Agpril 2016 30 April 2015
US§'000 US3'000 US$000 USs'000

Met assets atiributable to the holders of redeemable
participating units at the start of the year 85,008 75327

Movement due o issue and redemption of
redesmable participating units:

Amounts received/recelvable on Issues 5,018 1.287
Less: Amounts pald/payable on redemplions {11,866) (12,984)
(6,848) {11,687}

Change in net assels attributable to the halders of
redeamable participating units from investment aclivities 2,246 2468

Met aszets attributable to the holders of redeamable
participating wnits al the end of the year 56,804 65,058

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form an integral part of thase consolidated financial slatemants.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (the “Trust”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, an apen ended
Guemsey unit trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under the
Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013.

The registered office of the Manager of the Trust is HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited, Amold House, St
Julian's Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsay GY1 3NF, Channel Islands.

The Trust owns 100% of the units in HSBC Special Opportunities Invesiments Limited (the “Company”), a BYI
registered company. The Trust also lcaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activilies.

The Company owns the invesiments listed in the Portfolio of Invesiments. The purpose of the Company is to ensure
that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed,

These consolidated financial statements Include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company (together
the "Fund™).

The Trust registered as an Altlernative Investment Fund (AIF) with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Cenduct Authority and the Commission de Surveillance du Sector Financier. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AIFM the Trust is not authorised or regulatad under AIFMD and consequenty is not required to have a dapositary.

Slatemeant of compliance

The consalidated financial statements have been prepared In compliance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 1027) and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for Authorised Funds (the “SORF”) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014 and effective
for accounting pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2015. The Fund has also aarly adopted the amendments
10 FRS 102 which wene issued in March 2016,

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with ftems which are considered
material in relation to these consolidated financial statements:

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition and measurement of cerlain financial assels and liabilties at fair value,
This is the first year in which the financial siatements have been prepared under FRS 102. The last financial
stalements under the UK GAAP were for the year ended 30 April 2015, The date of fransiticn to FRS 102 was 1
May 2014, Details of the transition to FRS 102 are disclosed in Note 22,

im mern

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles of FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, eslimates and assumplions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilittes and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consclidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses
during the year.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiance and various other factors thal are
believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements
aboul carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

The areas invalving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements are disclosed within the Fair Value of Invesiments accounting policy and Note
13,

83/168



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consaldation

The consolidated financial statements inclede the results of the Trust and it wholiv-owned subsidiary HSBC
Spacial Opporlunities Investments Limited, The Manager does not consider the unconsolidated balance sheet of
the Trust to be of any relevance as the only reagon for setting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly no unconsolidated balance sheel s presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Eunctional and presentational currency

The functional and presentational currency is US Dollar because that is the currency of the primary economic
enviranment in which the Fund operatas.

Financial in mi
The Company has chosen 1o adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instrurments.

iy Financial assals

Basic financial assets, including deblors and cash and cash equivalents, are inflially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction iz measured at the present value
of the future receipis discounted at a market rate of interest,

Such assets are subsequenlly carried al amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
aevidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and the preseni value of the eslimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The
impairment boss is recognised in the consolidated statement of tofal retum,

Other financial assets, including investments in invastment funds and derivative contracts, are initially measured at
fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assels are subsequently carried at fair valug and the
changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated stalement of total return,

Financial assels are derecognised when (a) the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire or are
seftled, or (b} substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the assel are transferred to another parly or
{c) control of the asset has been transfarred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the
asset to an unrelated third party without imposing addiional restricions.

i) Financial liabilities
Basie financial liabilies, including creditors and loan obligaticns are inifially recognised al transaction price, unless

the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measuwred at the present value of
the future receipls discounted at a markel rate of interest.

Creditors and loan obligations are classified as debt instruments and are subseguently carred al amortised cost,
using the effactive intarest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Rability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instrumen nifinue

iiiy Fair value of investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per unit for the underdying investments
that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guemsey lime) on the balance sheet date. Investments in underlying funds which
are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange or other trading facility are valued at the nel asset values provided
by such entities or their adminisirators. These values may be unaudited or may themselves be estimates. In
addition, these entities or their administrators may not provide values at all or in a timely manner and, to the extent
that values are not available, those investments will be valued by the Investment Advisor using valuation technigues
appropriate to those investments. In determining fair value, the Invesiment Advisor takes inlo consideration, whare
applicable, the impact of suspension of redemptions, liquidation proceadings, Investments in side pockets and other
significant faclors. The Directors of the Manager have no reason to believe that the valuations used are
unreasonabla.

Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the consolidated statement of total
return within income. Realised gains and losses on saies of securities are determined using the average cost
method. Purchases and sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

iv) Forward forelgn exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on apen forward foreign exchange confracts is calculated by refarence
to the difference between the contracled rale and the rate lo close oul the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an assel and unrealised depreciation Is reported as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet. All net
gains or losses on forward foreign exchange confracts are recorded in the consolidated statement of total return,

Revenue

Interest income I8 recognized using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established. All other sources of revanue are recognised on an accruals basis, Revenue is
included in the consolidated statement of total return. All non-class specific incomea is allocated to each unit class in
proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year. All class specific income i allocated to the unit
class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included in the consolidated statement of total return on an accruals basis. All non-class specific
expenses are allocated to each unit class in proporiion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year. All
class specific expenses are allocated to the unit class to which they relate.

Interest expense

Intarest expense arises from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised In the conmsolidated
slatement of total return and are calculated using the effective interest rate method.
Use of estimates and judgements

F ran lan

Forabgn currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monatary
assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing
exchange rate rufing at the balance sheet date. The Fund reporls the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the
unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on nor-US Doliar denominated investments in the consolidated
statement of total retum. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation
arising from nom-US Dellar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency transactions are
reflected in the consolidated statement of tolal refurn.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalenis
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Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shert-term highly liquid
investmeants with original maturities of thres months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis, when applicable,

are shown as loans payables in current habilities.

Cash Flow Statement

Undar FRS 102 the Fund is exempt from the requirement to prepare 8 cash flow statement as it complies with the

conditions for cpen-ended investment funds.
Eormation expense

In accordance with the Fund's Prospectus the formatian costs will be amortised aver a period not exceeding five
years or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in
line with FRS 102, This depariure from FRS 102 does not have a material impact on the results repored in the

consolidated financial statements,
Units in issue

Redeomable participating unils are redesmable at the aption of the holder of redeemable participating unita and are

classified as financial Habilities.
Transactien Costs

Transaction costs are incremenial costs that are directly affributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value through profit or less. Transaction costs are recognised

wilhin the statement of total return when incurred.

Bew ndar Amendm

There are currently no fulure amendments to FRS102 [ssued that would have a significant impact on the Fund.

3 MET CAPITAL (LOSSES)WGAINS

Realised gains on non-derivative investments

Realised koss on non-derivative investments

Met unrealised losses on non-derivalive invasiments
Met realised gainsi{losses) on derivative investments
Met unrealised (losses)igains on derivative investments

Total met capital (losses)gains

“Year Ended “Year Ended
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
uss'ooo uss'ooo
9,545 6,311

(240) (188)
(10,636) {1,409)

85 (923)

(49) 91

{1,295) 3,882

Derivative investments held by the Fund are forward foreign exchange contracts as detailed in Note 12,
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HSBGC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (CONTINUED)

4 OPERATING EXPENSES

Year Ended Yaar Ended
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
LSE000 US$000
Payable to the Manager and its associales:
Management fees {843) {1.178)
Performance fees - (5)
{843} {1,183
Fayable to the Trustee and iis associates:
Trustes fees (59) (71}
Other expanses:
Audit fees {19} {19)
Othar sundry expenses (59) (58)
(7&) {75
Total axpenses (980} {1,329)

5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a trust deed dated 8 February 2007, as amended from time to time (the "Trust Deed”). HSBC
Management (Guemsey) Limited is the Manager of the HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, which includes the Fund.
In accordance with the Prospacius the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 1.65% of the net assel value per
annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class. The Management fee for the year amounted to US3842,352
(2015: US%1,177,500). The fee outstanding at year end was USENI (2015; USSNI),

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Manager appointed HSBC Altermnative Investments Limited as the
Investiment Adviser of the HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is
entitted to receive a performance fee if the percenfage increase in the net asset value per unils at the relevant
valuation point compared with the net asset value per units at the start of the current performance pericd eaxceads
the calculated return on the relevant index (the “Index Return®) and the net asset value per units at the start of the
performance period is not less than the net asset value per units at the end of any previous performance period.
The Index Relurn is calculated as the perceniage increase of an imputed invesimen! in the index over the
performance period, including appropriate compounding effects where applicable, with the index being updated in
line with prevailing market inferest rates as at the lasi valuation peint in March, June, September and December.
Performance Fee will be 10% of new “excess” value over the Index of the applicable Unit class. The performance
fee for the year amounted to LUSSNIl (2015: US$5,340). The fee oulstanding at the year end was USSNil (2015:
US$139,741).

Under tha terms of the Trust Deed, HSBC Private Bank (C..) Limited is the Trustee of the HSBC Alternative
Strategy Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net assel value per
annum. The Trustee fee for the year amounted to US$58,880 (2015: USE71,364). The fee cutstanding at the year
end was USENIl (2015 USSNIl),

& DEBTORS Asal As at

30 April 2016 30 April 2015

USS000 USs'o00

Sales awalting sattlement - 445
Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts

(sea MNate 12) 17 65

Prepaid expense 76 =

a3 510

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Az at As al

30 April 2016 30 April 2015

UISS'000 US3'000

Cash and bank balances 62 23
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

T CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Custodian™) and HSBC Private
Bank (C.1) Limited (the “Trustee™). The Fund's cash is maintained within the Custodian’s sub-custodial network in
segregated accounts. The credit raling of State Sireet Corporation, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30 April
2016 was A (2015: A+). The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc, the ultimate parent of the Trustee, at 30 April 2016
was A1 (30 April 2015: Aad) as rated by Moody's Ratings Agency.

8 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN OME YEAR Az al Az alt
30 April 2016 30 April 2015

USE000 US3'000

Loans payable {see Mote 11) (3,305) (6,186)
Accrued Performance fees . {1407
Othear creditors {2) (21)
{3,307) (6,347

8 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempl from Guemsey income tax under the Income Tax
{Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1889 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP1.200 (2015:
GBF1,200).

10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS IN ISSUE

Total

US Dollar Euwra Mumber of

Class Class uniis in issue

Redeemable Participating units in issue at 1 May 2015 453,243.20 17,156.14 470,390.34
Issued on Subscriptions 32.486.50 566580 38,152.30
Redemptions _(B451215) (3.066.60) (87.578.75)
Redeemable Participating units In issue at 30 Apsil 2018 401,217.55 18,755.34 420,872.89
Tolal

US Dollar Euro Mumber of

Class Class units in issue

Redeamable Participating units in issue at 1 May 2014 52758344  27.071.90 554,655.34
Issued on Subscripions 9,391.42 - 9,391.42
Redemplions {83,731.668) (9.915.78) (93,847 .42)
Fedeemable Participaling unils in issue at 30 April 2015 45324320 17.156.14 470,309.34

The Fund's net asset values per sharefunit are disclosed on page 28.

All series of unils rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights attached to them
other than managemen) fee rates as noted in Mote 5.

The Manager may limit the number of units in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not mone
than 15% of the total number of units in issue immediately before such date. Any redemption of units during the first
12 calendar months from the date of subseription shall be subject to a redemplion fee payable to the Fund and
equal to 5% of redemplion proceeds, Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0%, A maximum initlal chanrge of up to
3% of subscription monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's discretion,

US Dollar Ewro
Class Class Total
Us3'000 USS 000 US$000
MNet Assets at 30 April 2016 54 085 2,849 56,804
Met Assels at 30 April 2015 53,544 2,554 66,098
Met Assets at 30 April 2014 70,601 4,726 75,327
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Privale Bank (C.1.) Limited acis as Truslee to the Fund.

The Fund also placad money on deposit with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the vear. The interest rate
received is consistent with that received on a normal commercial deposit.

HSBC Alternative Invesiments Limited {the ‘Investment Adviser') is whelly owned by parties that are affilialed with
the Manager and the Trustea.

Loan

The Fund has the ability to borrow up 1o 25% of its nel assal value for a perod of up 1o one month 1o cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions of Invesiment Funds; and for a
period of up 1o three months to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the
Fund's net assel value, to facilitate additional investment in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of these
borrowing restrictions by the Fund during tha year.

HEBC Private Bank {C.1.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. Al the year end the loan
outstanding was U5$3,305,000 or 5.81% of its Net Asset Value (2015: US$6,186,000 or 8.36% of its Net Asset
Value). The interest paid during the year was USS75.446 (2015: USE85,142). The interest rale prevailing at the
balance sheel date is 1.6700% (2015: 1.0200%). The loan is secured and repayable on demand and there were no
breaches of these borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

There wera no other related party transactions for the year otheér than fees paid to the Manager, Trustee and
Investment Advisor as outlined in Note 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Aszals may be denominated in currencies ather than the functional currency of each unit class and cerlain currency
exposure will be hedged back to the relevant unit class currency, Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracts cr oplions on such confracts or by using such other derivative instruments as
may be available and having the same or similar effect. The investment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy
on currency hadging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the Unitholders of the
refevant unit class only.

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were oulstanding at 30 April 2016 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opponunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Uss
31-May-18 EUR2 458 962 US52 783,557 State Street Bank 17,130
31-May=16 EUR20,572 UsS523,311 State Street Bank 120
NMet unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracls '__;%

The following forward foreign exchange contracls were outstanding at 30 April 2015 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

uss

28-May-15 EURZ 281,564 US52,493,681 State Street Bank 65,513
29-May-15 ussa 2y ELR3.B6T Stale Street Bank (1200
£5.303

Met unrealised gain on foreard foreign exchange contracts 65,393
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a multi-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the manager selection and portfolic management processes, fogether with porifolio cversight and
monitoning in accordance with Fund investment restrictons, as listed in the relevan! Fund section in the Prospecius.

In manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks & hedge fund manager lakes
in the pursuit of returns are appropriate and conirolled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, is a
gseparate operational due diligence process, which evaluates the business and operational (non-investment) risks of
a hedge fund and seeks to avoid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process could compromise an
investmeni.

In portfolio management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order 1o assess risk
and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative technigues are used, including returns and exposure-
based analysis.

The Manager regularly monitors each Fund's compliance with the investment restrictions detailed in the Prospectus,
and rataing ovarsight of all aspects of the risk management process.

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market rizk, credil Ak and liguidity risk.
Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainly aboul future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through helding market positions in the face of price movemenis, The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's investment objective.

Market risk ermbodies the patential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk. The profitability of the Fund's investment programme depends to a great extent on comect assessments of the
future course of price movements of securities and equilies and ociher invesimenis. There can be no assurance that
the: Manager will be able to accuralely predict these price movements, The secwrities markets have in recent years
bean characlerised by great volalilily and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the
Investment Adviser has invested the Fund's assets, there is always some, and from time fo time a significant,
degree of market risk,

Detailz of the Fund's investment partfolio at the balance shee! date are disclosed in the Portfolia of Investmants
included on page 28,

The Fund, generally seeks lo initiate, increase, reduce or exit positions based on the use of a number of risk
analysis techniques, including but not limited to sensitivity and simulation analysis and value at risk ("VaR")
measurements, which use statistical analysis of historical and implied volatilities and movemenis lo determine
confidence levels of the historical maximum potential loss incurred for each position over a determined time horizon.
There can be no assurance that losses will not cceur and past performance is not indicative of fulure results.

The VaR calculation is a monte carlo simulation of each of the underlying holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregated to produce returns for one thousand simulated portfolios. The returns are simulated as the proportional
increments of constant drift, constant volatility stochastic processes, thereby approximating continuous-time
geomaelnc Brownian motion.

The data below indicates the VaR of the Fund's financial instruments, measured as the potential 1 day loss in value
from adverse changes in fund prices, interest rales and foreign exchange rates using a 99% confidence leval,

30 April 30 Agril
2016 2015
Overall Market VaR {99%) (6.36)% (6.48)%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

{a) Other prica risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will flucluate as a resull of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual
Invesiment, lis issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the slandard investment and borrowing restriclions as defined in the
Prospectus. The Fund's investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustee of the Fund and
reviewed quarterly by the Manager. There are specific guidelines in place for menitering and reperting breaches,
and situations where holdings come close o restriction levels.

(b) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund's financial assets are invesiments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have
a maturity date, The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however, the Fund
mitigates this risk by diversifying its investmeants.

The Fund has borrowed US$3,305,000 at year end (2015: US$6,186,000). To minimise its interes! rate risk the
Fund enters in floating rate loan agreements. The interest rate prevailing at the balance sheet date is 1.6700%
(2015: 1.0200%).

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US562,334 (2015: US522 810)

{c) Foreign currancy risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactiens denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relfative to
other forelgn currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than LS Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on @ momhly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance wilh policies and
procedures in place. All cumency exposura at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the ralavant unit class
on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund's overall currency positions and exposures are
mignitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund ziso offers redeemable parlicipating units denominated in Euro exposing the uniholders to foreign
gurrency risk. This risk is mitigated on behalf of the unitholdars by the Fund entering into forward foreign exchange
contracts as described further in this note.

The following table sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2016.

Manetary Assals

Currency and Liabilities Total Forward FX Mt
Uss'000 Uss'000 USs'000
Eura - 2,824 2,824

The following table sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currancies at 30 April 2015,

Monatary Assats
Currency and Liabilities Tedal Forward FX Met

LEs'000 Us5'000 UsSs000

Eura 2,555 2,555
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (COMTINUED)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credil risk on parties with whom It trades and also bears the risk of selllement default.

Credil risk arising on transactions with brokers relates fo transactions awaiting setilement. Risk relating to unsetiled
transactions is considered small dus 1o the shor setllement period involved and the high cradit qualily of the
brokers used, The Manager monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate
the credit risk of underlying investments.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited (the
“Custodian®). Bankrupicy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securities held
by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Manager monifors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and
financial positions of the Cusledian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State Sireet Corporation, the parent
company of the Custodian at 30 April 2016 was A (2015 A+).

The credit rating of HSBC Holdings ple, the ullimate parent of the Trustee, at 31 March 2016 was A1 (31 March
2015: Aad) as rated by Moody's Ralings Agency.

In addition the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying fund
invesiments.

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by underaking transactions with a karge number of counterparties.
Ag at the financial year and, none of tha financial assats of the Fund are past due or are impaired {2015: zera),

Liguidity risk

The main liabilittes of the Fund are the redemption of any units that investors wish to redeem and the loan
repayable to HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited. The risk is thal the Fund might not be able to liquidate investment
positiens in order to repay amounis demanded by its Unitholders or its lender,

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investmeant Adviser in accordance with policias and
proceduras in place. It is nat the normal policy of the Fund o invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are monitored gn a monthly basgis by the Manager,

The Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which perain to the management of
liquidity risk and concantrations thereof are monitored on a conlinuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There are
specific guidelines In place for monlloring and reporting breaches, and situations where heldings come close to
restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeemed on any Dealing Day to not mare
than 15% of the total number of Units In iszue immediately before such date. Such 15% limil shall ba calculated in
respect of the Fund as & whole and not in respect of each individual Unit class, Any Units failing to be redeemed
upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will ba carried forward to the next Dealing Day and shall be
redeemed pro rata in priorty to any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Nofice has subsequenily been
received,

All of the Funds liabilities are payable within one year and the loan is repayable on demand.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED )
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk {continued)

Al the 30 April 2016, the following investee funds had a redemplion period of greater than 50 days in place to
redeem ils investment holdings.

Market Value at

30 April 2016

Uss'000

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 10
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Invesimeant 8
Paulzon Enhanced Lid. - Class BR -Series 081401 HH 1,389
1,407

At the 30 Agril 2015 the following investee funds had a redemption pericd of greater than 80 days in place to
redeam its investment holdings.

Market Value at
30 April 2015
US5'000

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 14
AG Super Fund International Ltd, - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment 12
Paulsen Enhanced Lid. - Class BR -Series 081401 HH 2,552

2578

Fair value hierarchy

FRS 102 Section 11.27 on “Far Value: Disclosure” reguires disclosure relating to the fair value hierarchy in which
fair value measuremenis are calegorised for assels and Kabilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair
value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation technigues to measure fair value,

The fair value higrarchy as required under FRS 102 is based on the valuation inputs used to fair valua tha financial
assets and liabilitles and consideration of the market activity for each individual financial asset and Eabllity, The
definitions for Lavals 1, 2 and 3 are set out below.

Level 1; The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assels or liabilithes that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Leved 2: Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable (i.e. developed using market
data) far the asset or liability, either directly or indirectiy.

Level 3: Inputs are unobsarvabla (i.e. for which marke! data ks unavailable) for the asset or liability

The level in the fair value higrarchy within which the fair value measuremeant was catagorisad in its entirely was
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that was significant to the fair value measurement in fis enlirety.
For this purposa, the significance of an input was assessed against the fair value measurement in its antiraty.

If @ fair value measurement used observable inputs that required significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement was a Leval 3 measuremaent. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair
valua measurement in its entirety required judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability. The
determination of what constituted “observable” required significant judgement by the Investment Adviser,

The Investment Adviser considered observable data to be market data that was readlly avallable, regulary

distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market.
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Falr value hlerarchy (continued)

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The following tables pravide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair

value at 30 April 20186:

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels Us§'000 uss'ono uss'oo00 Uss'oo0
Financial assels at fair value through
profit or loss:
Investment funds = 60,038 18 60,056
Fereard foreign exchange contracts - 17 - 17
Total Assets - 60,055 18 50,073

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair

valua at 30 April 2015:

Level 1 Leveal 2 Level 3 Total
Assels us$o000 uss'ooo uss'oon USs'000
Financial assets al fair value through
profit or loss:
Investment funds 71,886 27 71,813
Forward foreign exchange conlracls - 65 - &5
Total Assels - 71,851 27 71,878

The level in the higrarchy within which the falr value measurement is categorsed in s entirely is delermined basad
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

Transfers between levels are recorded as If the transfer happened at the end of the financial year.

There were no transfers between Lovals 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the yvear ended 30 April 2016 or

30 April 2015.

In relation to financkal assets and liabdities not measured at fair value including cash and cash equivalenis, other
assals and liabilities, and net assels attributable to holders of redeemable units, their carmying amount approximate
fair value because of the short nafure and the high credit quality of counierpariies and these assets and liabiliies

have been classified as Level 2 of the hierarchy in accordance with FRS 102,

(&) Transfers bedween lavels of the fair value herarchy

There were no fransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year.

(&) Laval 3 reconciliation

The table below shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within

Level 3 between the beginning and end of the reparing period.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Opening balance at the start of the year

Total realised and unrealised gains for the year

Purchases

Sales and repayments

Transfers in to Lavel 3

Transfers oul of Level 3

Closing balance at the end of the year
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(d) Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair vaiue

Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value represents the latest available net asset value of the
units/shares of the investments in funds as published by the Administrator of the fund and the company's recent
transactions.

(&) Effect of change in significant assumplions of Level 3 financial instruments

If the fair value of the Fund's investment in funds changed by 3% then the fair value of the Level 3 investment in
funds would change by USE541 (2015 USETI5).

Leverage

Whaere a fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the fund will be significantly greater than would othenwise
have been the case without the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participate in higher returns
associated with greater expasure, it also gives a fund exposure to increased losses where markets in genaral and a
fund in particular, invest in assets where prices suffer declines.

Certain invesiment funds in which a fund may invest use material levels of leverage and are not imiled in either
thedr borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds
may exceed their Met Assel Values. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achleving a much greater overall
return, but also increases the Fund's volatility and carries the risk of total loss of the amount invested, Please refer
to Note 11 for detalls on borrowings of the Fund.

14 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units,
The Trust is subject to quarterly redemplions requests of the unitholders.

The Trust's aim with respect 1o management of its capital is to safeguard its abdity to continue as a going concern,

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units. As detailed in Note 13, The Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prozspecius, scme of
which pertain to the management of liquidity risk and concentrations thereof include restrictions in respect of
investmant in closed-anded funds, restrictions in respect of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage
holding allowable in any individual invesiment fund. Liquidily risk is monitored on a continuous basis by the Trustes
of the Fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporling breaches, and situations where
heldings come close to restriction levels.

As detailed in Note 11, the Fund also has a loan facility available o cover a cash shortfall caused by mismalched
settlameant datas on purchase and sale ransactions and to fund redemplions; and for investment purposes, subject
to a maximum of 10% of the Fund's net asset value, to facilitate additional invastment in Investment Funds.

15 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rofled-up”, and income will not be
distributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per unit.

16 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

The following foreign exchange rate was used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency (US
Dollars)

As at As at
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
Euro 0.8787 0.8918
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17 COMMITMENTS AMD CONTINGEMNT LIABILITIES
Tha Fund had no commitment or contingent kabilities as at 30 April 2016 and 30 April 2015

18 SIGMIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
On 1 January 2015, FRS 102 became the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and
Republic of Ireland for accounting periods beginning on or affer this date. The funds transitioned to FRS 102 on 1
May 2014,

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 23 June 2016, the UK electorate voted to leave the European Union. This decision commences a process that is
likely to take a minimum of two years to complete, and during this time the UK remains a member of the European
Union. There will be a period of uncenainty for the UK economy and increased volatility in financial markets. This

does not impact the fair value of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, reported at the Balance
Sheet date of 30 April 2016,

There were no further significant events subsequent to the year end date that require adjusiment to, or disclosure in
these consolidated financial statements.

20 CONTROLLING PARTIES
The Manager doas not consider there to be an immediate or ulimate controlling party of the Fund.

21 HIGHEST AND LOWEST MAY PER UNIT DURING THE YEAR

Highest Lowest
Unit Class NAV per Unit MAV par Unit
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Daollar Class US5141.97 US5126.29
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR134.40 EUR119.20

22 TRANSITION TOFRS 102

Thig ig the first year that the Fund has presented its results under FRS102. The last financial statements prepared
under previous UK GAAP were for the year ended 30 April 2015. The date of transilion to FRS 102 was 1 May
2014, Tha Company has early acopled the amendmenis to FRS 102 (issued in March 2016). Set out below are the
changes In accounting policles which reconcile profit for the financial year ended 30 April 2015 and the net assels
attributable to holders of redesmable participating units as at 1 May 2014 and 30 April 2015 batween UK GAAP as
previously reported and FRS 102.

Reconcillations

In accordance with tha requiremants of FRS 102 a reconciliation of the prior year change in net assels and opening
balances is provided below.

Reconcillation of ehange in net assels attributable to holders of redeemable participating units from
investment activities for the year

30 April 2015
UsSs'0ag
Change in nat assets altributable to holders of redeemable participating 2,468
units from investment activities reported under LUK GAAP
Adjustments on transition - none -
Total comprehensive income altributable to holders of redeemable
participating units frem invesiment activities as reporied under FRS 102 2,468
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22 TRANSITION TO FRS 102 (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units
30 April 2015 1 May 2014

US$'000 US$'000
Met assels attributable to the holders of redeemabile participating units as
previously reported under UK GAAP 66,098 75,327
Adjustmenis on transition - none - -
Met assels attributable to the holders of redeemable participating units as
85,008 75,327

reported under FRS 102
Other adjustments arising on transition to FRS 102
Mo adjustments have been identified that have an impact on the recognition and measurement of transactions and

batances in these financial statements. Additional noles and disclosures required under FRS 102 have been
included in these financial slatements. There are currently no fulure amendments issued that would have a

significant impact on the Fund.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
FORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2016 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Helding Market value %% of total
ussong net assets
UsD (2015: 108.80%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 -
Special Investmeant & 10 0.02
AG Supar Fund International Lid. - Class XXXX Series 2 -
Special Investment 5 ] 0.01
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - 1S Series W 01 Moy
2007 GSY 2522 3,628 6.30
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Clags B USD
Shares Non New |ssues 1,146 5629 9.89
D.E. Shaw Composite Intemational Fund - April 1si
Subscription 1 11,317 18.88
East Lodge Capital Credit Opportunities Fund - Class B 4,000 3713 6.53
EMA Opportunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class C Shares
Reslricted Series 1 Dec 2015 1,500 1.453 2.55
EMA Opportunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class C Shares
Restricled Series Jan 2016 4,000 3.880 6.82
Davidson Kempner International {EVI) Ltd, - Class C Tranche 1
Series 1.Jan 16 - GSY 358 181 .32
Davidson Kempner International {BW1) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3
Series 1 Jan 16 = GSY 22 610 3,757 6.80
Davidson Kempner International {BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4
Serles 1 .Jan 16 = GSY 2B B5T 3,571 6.28
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. Class C 4,000 3,873 6.81
Marcato Intermational Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial
Series 1,837 2,622 4.61
Paulson Enhanced Lid. - Class BR -Saries 081401 HH 25,000 1,289 2.44
Starboard Value and Opporilunity Fund Lid, - Class A Series 92 2001 4,602 808
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class E - GSY 2,842 943 1.66
Third Point Ultra Lid. = Class C - GSY 419 1,958 344
Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class C - Series 12 NI - G5Y 556 576 1.01
Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class D - Series 22 - GSY 1,074 1,092 192
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Lid. Class A USD - GSY 38,380 5,848 10.27
60,058 105.54
Portfolio of Investments {201 5: 108.80%:) 60,058 105.54
Nat current liabilities (including derivatives) {3.152) (5.54)
Total net assets 56,904 100.00
Net asset value per unit Az at As at
30 Agpril 2016 30 Apil 2015
HSBC Special Opporlunities Fund - US Dollar Class US8134.73 US§140.20
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR126.72 EUR132.7T
Portfolio classification
As at As at
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
Unlisted securities 100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTURNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2016 (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Sector Allocation
Az at As al
30 April 2016 30 April 2015
Event Driven 58.60% 58.70%
Multi=-Strategy 28.20% 50%
Credit Long/Short 12.20% 8.80%

100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2016* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Mominal Cost
Uss'000
East Lodge Capital Credit Opportunities Fund - Class B 4,000 4,000
ENA Opporlunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class C Shares Resiricted Series Jan 2016 4,000 4,000
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. - Class C 4,000 4,000
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class C Shares Restricled Serias 1 Dac 2015 1,500 1,500
Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class D - Saries 22 1.074 1,074
Sales
Descriplion Mominal Proceeds
LS$000
D.E. Shaw Composile Infemational Fund - April 15t Subscription 0.284 3,700
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 2,253 3478
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial Series 1.976 3,174
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B USD Shares Non New
lzsues 506 2,750
Beach Paint Total Return Offshore Fund Il - 1S Series WV 01 Nov 2007 GSY 1.760 2,497
AG Super Fund Intemational Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 1.570 2,427
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD = GSY 16,170 2,397
Highland Crusader Fund Il 1 1,868
Davidzon Kempnor International (BV1) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Serias 1 Jan 16 = GSY 12,316 1,500
Third Point Ultra Lid, - Class F - Series 1 3.410 1,074
Aderans - Comman Slock 40,000 226

* Significant porifolio changes are dafined as the value of purchazes or sales of a sacurity exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the Trust at the start of the year, Listed above are total purchases and total sales during the year ended 30
April 2016.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMITIES FUND

INFORMATION ON HSBC ALTERMATIVE STRATEGY FUND

HEBC Alternative Strategy Fund I3 an umbrella unit trust comprizging the following sub funds and classes (as at 30 April
20186):

HSBC Special Opporlunities Fund — US Dollar Class
HEBC Spacial Opporlunities Fund - Euro Class

collectively known as the HSEC Special Opportunities Funds
HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Fund = US Dollar Class
HS5BC Credit Market Opportunities Fund = Euro Class
HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund = Institulional Class (US Dollar)
HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Fund — US Daollar R Class

collectively known as the HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Funds

Unitholders should note that coples of the latest financlal statements of each of the above Funds are available
from the Manager free of charge on request,
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HSBC
28
53,039,777.18 5,472,644
169,501.97 17,489
52,870,275.21 5,455,155
365,624.78
137.41 14,178
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28 100,000 1,349
100,000
100,000
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28
Carl Rosumek 0
KPMG
Isabel Robins 0
MRICS
) 0
(Tony Corfield)
Michael Quarrington 0
FCA MSCI
HSBC 0
Kate Charles
0
(Stephen Rouxel)
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HSBC

3,323.15

28

HSBC

HSBC Portfolio Selection Fund

2,199.15

HSBC
52.70
HSBC Uni Folio
HSBC
79.21
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund
HSBC UCITS
UcITS 108.85
HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund
BFC
16.50
BFC Value Chain Fund
866.73

Various Private Equity

Syndicates
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23 103

28 31
UFJ 103.18
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HSBC
2015 12 31
2015 2014
19,565 2,019 27,460 2,833
158 16 158 16
32,640,748 3,367,872 28,286,438 2,918,595
, 21,521,951 2,220,635 23,226,133 2,396,472
500,000 51,590 500,000 51,590
54,662,699 5,640,097 52,012,571 5,366,657
10 12,158,085 1,254,471 10,019,493 1,033,811
6,600,631 681,053 5,381,967 555,311
1,962,322 202,472 2,099,253 216,601
10 121,500 12,536 180,000 18,572
20,842,538 2,150,533 17,680,713 1,824,296
33,820,161 3,489,564 34,331,858 3,542,361
33,839,884 3,491,599 34,359,476 3,545,211
11 157,762 16,278 157,762 16,278
33,682,122 3,475,321 34,201,714 3,528,933
33,839,884 3,491,599 34,359,476 3,545,211
2016 24
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HSBC

2015 12 31

2015 2014
56,931,851 5,874,228 62,301,828 6,428,303
56,931,851 5,874,228 62,301,828 6,428,303
21,861,985 2,255,720 20,384,774 2,103,301
11,092,737 1,144,549 14,719,008 1,518,707
4,382,189 452,154 4,519,434 466,315
1,084,574 111,906 1,409,386 145,420
943,787 97,380 1,065,749 109,964
549,755 56,724 530,811 54,769
296,056 30,547 204,858 21,137
232,466 23,986 144,000 14,858
, 7,894 815 9,368 967
(40,451,443) (4,173,780)  (42,987,388) (4,435,439)
16,480,408 1,700,448 19,314,440 1,992,864
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HSBC
2015 12 31

2015 157,762 16,278 34,201,714 3,528,933 34,359,476 3,545,211
- - 16,480,408 1,700,448 16,480,408 1,700,448

107.76 - - (17,000,000) (1,754,060) (17,000,000) (1,754,060)

2015 12 31 157,762 16,278 33,682,122 3,475,321 33,839,884 3,491,599
2014 157,762 16,278 34,887,274 3,599,669 35,045,036 3,615,947
- - 19,314,440 1,992,864 19,314,440 1,992,864

126.77 - - (20,000,000) (2,063,600) (20,000,000) (2,063,600)

2014 12 31 157,762 16,278 34,201,714 3,528,933 34,359,476 3,545,211
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2015 12 31
2015 2014

16,480,408 1,700,448 19,314,440 1,992,864
7,894 815 9,367 966
16,488,302 1,701,263 19,323,807 1,993,830
1,704,183 175,838 2,485,976 256,503
3,161,825 326,237 788,333 81,340
21,354,310 2,203,338 22,598,116 2,331,674
21,354,310 2,203,338 22,508,116 2,331,674
(17,000, 000) (1,754,060)  (20,000,000) (2,063,600)
(17,000, 000) (1,754,060)  (20,000,000) (2,063,600)
4,354,310 449,278 2,508,116 268,074
28,286,438 2,918,505 25,688,322 2,650,521
32,640,748 3,367,872 28,286,438 2,918,595
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HSBC
HSBC 1986 9 25
HSBC
HSBC
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
HDSAP 100%
2016 HV @ 100%
(1) 2016 11
) IFRS
2008 IFRS
(b)
IFRS - 2018 IFRS
IFRS 15 2018
IFRS 15
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©

10
33173

1,230,788 2014 1,112,027 2015 12 31
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HSBC
10
HSBC
2015 12 31 8,367,692 2014 11,111,364
343,181 2014 272,987
2015 1 1 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2015 12 31 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2015 1 1 136,630 1,026,149 1,162,779
6,307 1,587 7,894
2015 12 31 142,937 1,027,736 1,170,673
2015 12 31 19,565 - 19,565
2014 12 31 25,873 1,587 27,460
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2015 12 31 HSBC C.lI.
32,640,748 2014 28,286,438 2015
2014
2015 2014
14,186,786 13,003,784
5,860,149 7,941,836
1,475,016 2,280,513
21,521,951 23,226,133
2012 12 13 10 2012
2013 10
% 2014
2015 2014
6,600,631 5,381,967
1,962,322 2,099,253
8,562,953 7,481,220
10
2015 2014
12,158,085 10,019,493
121,500 180,000
12,279,585 10,199,493
11
2015 2014
100,000 100,000 100,000
100,000 157,762 157,762
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2015 2014
(11,527,865) (15,039,008)
(7,114,702) (9,652,217)
(807,092) (657,509)
12,158,085 2014 10,019,493
500,000 2014 500,000
HSBC C.l.
PBCI
2015 12 31 PBCI 1,084,574
1,409,386
232,466 2014 144,000
AA
12 31
2015 2014
500,000 500,000
32,640,748 28,286,438
21,521,951 23,226,133
54,662,699 52,012,571
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(b)
HSBC ALCO
©
2015 2014
915,630 5,360,176
550,809 1,051,046
210,339 550,663
18,021 50,691
- 97,517
- 17,353
96 2,043,346
446,959 89,912
2015 12 31 %
%
2015 2014
45,781 268,009
49,888 52,552
10,517 27,533
901 2,535
- 4,876
- 868
5 102,167
(D
©)
®

118/168



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
Q)
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
/
HSBC
HSBC
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14
HSBC 100
HSBC

15

2016 17 17,000,000
2016 31
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HSBC
2015 12 31

54,060,763

25 100,000

25 (1,676,651)
52,384,112
54,060,763

10 10,000

10 (670,661)
53,390,103
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HSBC MANMAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 7

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Notes 2015 2014
Uss Uss

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and cquipment L] 19,565 27,460
Investment in subsidiaries 2 158 158
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents [ 32,640,748 28,286,438
Amounts due from funds under management 387 21,521,951 23,226,133
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary
companies 500,000 500,000
Current assels 54,662,699 52,012,571
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Commission in 12,158,085 10,019,493
Amounts due to fellow sebsidiary companies 9 6,600,631 5,381,967
Amounts due to related companies 9 1,962,322 2,099,253
Oither Creditors 10 121,500 180,000
Current liabilitics 20,842,518 17,680,713
Met current assets 33,820,161 34,331,858
Met assets 33,839 884 34,359,476
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Called up share capital 1 157,762 157,762
Retained earnings 33,682,122 34,201,714
Total shareholders' equity 33,830,884 34,359,476

The financial statements on pages 6 o 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on &Y March 2016 and
are signed on its behalf by:

CHARLES C ROSUMEK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

INCOME

Management, Managing
Trustee, Administration &
Performance fees

EXPENSES

Commissions

Investment advisory fees
Trustee, custody & Transfer
Agency fees

Salaries and bencfits
Management fees paid to
ZrOUP companies

Foreign exchange loss
Other expenses

Fec paid to non-executive
directors

Depreciation

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Motes

2&5

Uss

21,861,985
11,002,737
4,382,189

1,084,574
943,787

549,755
294,056
232,466

7,894

2013

UsE

36,931,851

—_— e

56,931,851

(40,451,443)

16,480,408

Uss

20,384,774
14,719,008
4,519,434

1,409,386
1,065,749

530,811
204,858
144,000

9,368

Uss

62,301,828

—_—

62,301,828

(42,987,388)

19,314,440

The Company has no other component of other comprehensive income other than the income for the year.

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2013

AT 1| JANUARY 2013

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (US5107.76 per
share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

AT I JANUARY 2014

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity:
Drividend paid (US5126.77 per
share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
Uss Uss Uss

157,762 34,201,714 34,359,476

& 16,480,408 16,480,408

- (17,000,000) (17,000,000

157,762 33,682,122 33,839,884
Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
Uss USS Uss

157,762 34.887274 35,045,036

- 19,314,440 19,314,440

- (20,000,000 (20,000,000)

157,762 34,201,714 34,359,476

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 9

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Motes 2015 2014
Uss Uss
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation | 6,480,408 19,314,440
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 5 7,894 9,367
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in
working capital 16,488,302 19,323,807
Changes in working capital:
- [ecrease in other assets 1,704,183 2,485,976
- Decrease in other liabilities 3,160,825 788,333
21,354,310 22598116
Met cash generated from operating activities 21354310 22,598,116
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to shareholders {17,000,000) (20,000,000)
Cash used in financing activities £17,000,000) {(20,000,000)
NET DECREASE TN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4354310 2.598.116
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY 28,286,438 25 688,322
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 32,640,748 28,286,438

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Company™) was registered in Guemsey on 25 September
1986, The Company is domiciled in Guemnsey and a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Investment
Holdings {Guernsey) Limited which is registered in Guernsey. The ultimate parent company is HEBRC
Holdings ple, which is a publicly quoted company incerporated in the United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Company are to act as Manager, Managing Trustee and Director of a variety
of funds and corporate director of associated subsidiary companies. The Company's wholly owned
subsidiaries are listed below.

Name of Entity Country of| Percentage | Nature of Entity
Formation | Ownership
Emerging Growth Real Estate Fund 11 GP Limited Guernsey 100% Gieneral Partner
Vintage 11l Special Situations GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
Vintage | Secondary GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
Secondary Club Deal IT GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Pariner
Secondary Club Deal 1 GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
HDSAP GF Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
Vintage 2016 HV GP Limited " Guernsey | 100% General Partner

Mlacorporated on 11 February 2016

{a}) The Company preparcs its financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") which give a true and fair view and are in compliance with the Companies
{Guernsey) Law, 2008, IFRS comprise accounting standards issued by the lnternational Accounting
Standards Board and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the Intemational
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body.

{b) At the date of approval of these finangial statements, the following standards and interpretation, which
will become relevant to the Company but have not been applied in the financial statements, were in
issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement” (effective for periods on or after 1
January 2018). The Company is assessing the impact of IFRS9;

IFRS 15 “Revenue from conteact with customers™ (effective from periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018). The company is assessing the impact of IFRS 15,

These standards will be adopted when they become effective.

fe) The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions about future
conditions. These estimates and assumptions require management to make judgments about the carying
value used in obtaining the Net Asset Value (“NAV"} which are not readily available from other
sources, due to the time lag between the financial statements being prepared and the release of the final
MAV. These estimates and assumplions are based on historical experience and other factors that arc
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company will continue to review whether these estimates that have been made represent an

aceurate representation of the financial information provided. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 11

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's comprehensive statement of income, statement of financial position and
statement of cash flow in these financial statements have been made.

PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with ftems which are
considered material in relation to the Company's financial statements:

Functional and presentation currency

liems included in the financial statcments are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency™). These financial statements are
presented in US dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fareign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the funetional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial pesition date. Any
resulting exchange differences are included in the profit or loss for the period. Mon-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measurcd in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency using the rate of exchange at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary assets and habilitics
mecasured at fair value in a forcign currency are translated into the functional currency using the rate of
exchange at the date the fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation,

Diepreciation is calculated at the following annual rates so as to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Fumiture, fixture and fittings 10%
Computer hardware and related software 33 1/3%

Computer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are
expensed as incurred.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. All subsidiaries are wholly owned General Partners, as
detailed on page 10 which are incorporated in Guemsey.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalenis include highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Such investments are normally those with less than three months®
to maturity from the date of acquisition, and include cash, current accounts with banks and money at
call to banks.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 12

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 it
Management fees, managing trustee fees and administration fees; fiduciary income are accounted for on an
accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised when the entitlement to performance fee is reasonably
established,

3. FEES
Management and managing trustee fees: fiduciary income

The Company receives management fees and managing trusiee fees based on a percentage of the
underlying net asset value or total commitments of the respective funds. Management and trusice fees
are recognised on an accruals basis. Fiduciary income from the Company’s regulated fiduciary activities
totalling US$1,230,788 (2014: USS1,112,027) has been earned in the year ended 31 December 2015

Commissions

The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay retuwrn commissions to those branches, fellow
subsidiaries, affiliates and associates of the HSBC Group entities and certain approved third parties
introducing subscribers to funds under management. The return commissions fall into two categories:
firstly a portion of the initial charge (where applicable) and secondly an ongoing trailer commission
bazed on the net asset value of monies introduced by units and which remain associated with the
particular unit. Commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis and the commissions payable al the
year end are detailed in note 10,

Vi f

The Company pays investment advisory fees to fellow subsidiaries, associates of the HSBC Group
entities and third parties providing investment advice to the funds under management. Investment
advisory fees are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Manager's performance fees

Under the management agreements with various entities and structures, and subject to performance of
the underlving vehicle, the Company is entitled to a performance fee. The Company has the ability to
share any such performance fees received with associates and investment advisers, as appropriate,
Performance fees iotaling US$8,367,692 have been earned in the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014:U8$11,111,364), Performance fees are recognised when the right to recover performance fec
income is established.

4, MANAGEMENT FEES PAID TO GROUP COMPANIES

Management fees paid to group companies include rental charges of US$343,181 (2014: US$272,987).
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 13

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture, fixtures and Computer Todal
fittings hardware &
related software
Uss LSS Uss
COST
At 1 January 2015 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
At 31 December 2015 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2013 136,630 1,026,149 1,162,779
Charge for year 6,307 1,587 7,894
At 31 December 2015 142,937 1,027,736 1,170,673
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 31 December 2015 19,565 - 19,565
At 31 December 2014 25,873 1,587 27460

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015 are balances with a related party, HSBC
Private Bank (C.1) Limited, of US$32,640,748 (2014: US$28,286,438). During 2015 the Company
earned no interest on these balances (2014; nil),

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

2015 2014

LSS uss

Management and administration fees 14,186,786 13,003,784
Performance fees 5,860,149 7,841,836
Other fees 1,475,016 2,280,513
21,521,951 23,226,133
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8 TAXATION

Following the passing of the Income tax (Zero 10) (Company Intermediate Rate) {Amendment)
{Guernsey) Ordinance 2012 on 13 December 2012, with effect from 1 January 2013 the Company's
income arising, net of deductible expenses, from specific regulated fiduciary business is taxed at the
company intermediate rate of 10% (Note 3 shows the fiduciary income eaned in the year). The
remainder of the Company’s income is taxed at the company standard rate of (%. The Company has
1SSnil expense in relation to the taxation on its fidueiary business (2014: US3nil).

%, AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

2015 2014

Uss LSS

Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companics 6,600,631 5,381,967
Amounts due to related companics 1,962,322 2009253
8,562,953 7.481,220

Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

10. OTHER LIABILITIES

2015 2014
UsH LS
Commission payable (Note 3} 12,158,085 10,019,493
Other creditors 121,500 180,000
12,279,585 10,194,493
11, SHARE CAPITAL

20135 2014
Authorised: & £
100,000 ardinary shares of £1 each 1000, 000 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: Uss LSS

1(H}, 000 ordinary shares of £1 each
(translated at historic cost) 157,762 157,762

The ordinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

* They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to time be recommended by the
Directors and declared by the Company;

# They have voting rights with each share carrying one vote;

o All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions, excepting the amounts due from fellow subsidiary companies, were made on
the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and have been disclosed in these
finaneial statements. Amounts due to Group Companies, generated in the normal operating business cyele,
are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand.

Apart from transactions and outstanding balances disclosed in Note 4, Note 6, Mate 7 and Note 9 in the
financial statements, the Company entered into the following ransactions with its fellow subsidiary
companies and related companics during the year:

2015 2014
LsE Uss

INCOME STATEMENT
Investment advisory fees (11,527,865) {15,039,008)
Commissions (7.114,702) (9,652,217)
Trustee and custody fees (307,092) {657,509)

Management fees - i

In addition, Commission due to related parties at the year end was USSI2,158,085 (2014:
UIS510,019,493) and amount due from fellow subsidiary companies at the year end was US5500,000
{2014: USE300,0007.

All staff acting on behalf of the Company are employed by HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited
(FBCI). On a monthly basis, PBCI invoices the Company for staff utilised in the Company’s
operations. For the vear ended 31 December 2015, PBCI billed the Company a total of
USE1,084,574 (2014: USS1,409,386) for salaries and benefits.

Mon-executive directors fees of USS$232,466 (2014: USS144,000) were payable in this year,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13, RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty o meet
its ebligations under a contract of fund administration. The Company has standards, policies and
procedures dedicated to controlling and monitoring risks from all such activitics.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companies with credit ratings of AA
from Fitch where management considers the ¢redit risk to be minimal.

Amount due from the funds under management and from fellow subsidiaries, the Company
considers the credit risk to be minimal. The following table provides a breakdown of credit
exposure excluding collateral held or other credit enhancements:

At 31 December
2015 2014
USE Us%
Amount due from fellow subsidiary companies 500,000 S04, 000
Cash and cash equivalents 32,640,748 28,286,438
Amount due from funds under management 21,521,951 23,226,133
54,662,699 52,012,571

(b} Market risk management
Market risk is the risk that the value of funds under management decreases with a resultant effect on
income.

The Company manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) of HSBC Group in order to reduce the impact on the Company’s
aperations,

(c) Foreign exchange exposure
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s foreign exchange exposure arises from changes
in the US$ equivalent value of amounts denominated in foreign currencies as set out below:

2015 2014
Uss LSS
ASSETS
Euro 915,630 5.3060,176
British Pound 550,509 1,051,046
Swiss Franc 210,339 550,663
Japanese Yen 18,021 30,691
Chinese Yuan - 97,517
Singapore Dollar - 17,353
Hong Kong Dallar 96 2,043,346
LIABILITIES
British Pound 446,959 89,912
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Foreign exchange exposure {comtinued)

Sensitivity analysis

A § percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December 2015
would have resulted in an impact on the profits (losses) shown below. A 5 percent weakening of
the US dollar would have had the equal bt opposite effect to the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,

2015 2014

Uss US%
Euro 45,781 268,009
British Pound 49,888 52,552
Swiss Franc 10,517 27,533
Japanese Yen o0l 2,535
Chinese Yuan - 4,876
Singapore Dollar - 868
Hong Kong Dollar 5 102,167

(d) Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in realising assets or atherwise
raising funds to meet commitments.

The Company uses various sources to provide a stable funding, These include maintaining bank
balances in instant access call accounts, inter-group funding and the Company's shareholder’s

equity.
(e

et

Capital risk management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business, Capital consists of called up
share capital and retained earnings, Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level
of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

The Company is regulated by the Guemsey Financial Services Commission which sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Company as described on page 20. Management regularly
monitors the Company’s capital to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Guernsey
Financial Services Commission.

(f) [mterest risk managenent

The Company has no exposure to interest rate risk as the Company holds no interesi bearing
financial instruments.

(2) Cperational risk management
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission,

inefficiency, systems failure or from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation
and cavers a wide spectrum of issues,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processes are
documented, authorisation is independent and tramsactions are reconciled and monitored. This is
supported by an independent programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit, and by
menitoring external operational risk events, which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with
best practice and takes account of lessons leamed from publicised operational failures within the
financial services industry.

The HSBC Group has codified its operational risk management process by issuing a high level
standard. This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational risk by identifyving, assessing,
monitoring, controlling and mitigating the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing
any additional procedures required for compliance with local regulatory requirements. The
processes undertaken to manage operational risk are determined by reference to the scale and nature
of each HSBC Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the following:

»  Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the
business operation;

¢ [Information systems are used to record the identification and assessment of operational risks
and generate appropriate, regular management reporting;

=  Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing cach
business and risks inherent in processes, activities and products. Risk assessment incorporates a
regular review of risks identified to monitor significant changes;

¢ Operational risk loss data is collected and reported to senior management. This report covers
aggregale operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

* Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-effective.

Local management is responsible for implementation of the HSBC Group standard on operational risk,

() Reprrational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC's reputation is of paramount importance 1o its continued prosperity and
is the responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or
environmental issues, or a5 a consequence of operational risk events. As a banking group, H3BC's
good reputation depends upon the way in which it conduets its business, but il can also be affected
by the way in which clients, to whom it provides financial services, conduct themselves.

Reputational risks are considered and assessed by the Board, HSBC Group Management Board, the
Risk Managemeni Commitice, subsidiary company beards, board commitiees andlor senior
management during the formulation of policy and the establishment of HSBC standards. Standards
on all major aspects of business are set for HSBC and for individual subsidiaries, businesses and
functions. These policies, which are an integral part of the internal control systems, are
communicated through manuals and statements of policy and are promulgated through internal
communications and training. The policies set out operational procedures in all areas of reputational
risk, including money laundering deterrence, environmental impact, anti-corruption measures and
employee relations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company is a 100% subsidiary of HSBC Investment Holdings (Guemnsey) Limited with the
ultimate controlling interest being HSBC Holdings PLC,

15. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On the 17 March 2016 the Board of Directors of the Company approved a dividend of $17,000,000
in respect of the ordinary shares. The dividend is due for payment by 31 March 2016.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 20

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Uss
Expenditure Based Reguirement Test
Met assets alter adjustments, contingent liabilities and risks 54,060,763
Greater of the 25% Annual Audited Expenditure and £100,000:
25% of Annual Audited Expenditure (1,676,651)
MNET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES 52,384,112
Liguidity Reguirement
Met Assel after adjustment, contingent liabilities and risks 54,060,763
Greater of the 10 % Annual Audited Expenditure and £10,000;
10% of Annual Audited Expenditurc (670,661
NET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES 53,390,103
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) HSBC Special
Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 30 April 2016 and the
consolidated statement of total return, the consolidated statement of change in net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable participating units for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Manager's responsibility for the financial statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" ("FRS 102"), and with the requirements of Guernsey law.
The Manager is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Manager, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as of 30 April
2016, and of its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Trust
Deed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information is as detailed in the table of contents.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund's unitholders as a body in

accordance with paragraph 6.02(1) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
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any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by

our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date: 24 August 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give atrueand fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of The Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008, and The Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987.

Thisopinion isto beread in the context of what we say below.
What we have audited

The financia statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, which are prepared by HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited, comprise:

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015;
e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2015;

e the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2015; and

e thenotesto thefinancia statements, which include a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The financia reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation comprises applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and
considered future events.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK &
Ireland)). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. Thisincludes an assessment of

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been

consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
e the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and
e theoverall presentation of the financia statements.

In addition, we read al the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsi stencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.
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Opinion on other matters
In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Furthermore we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20. In our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified in Rule 2.2.2 of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2010 Rules has been
satisfied.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e we have not received al the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
e adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
e thefinancia statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsihilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set out on page 3, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financia statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.

Our responsihility isto audit and express an opinion on the financial statementsin accordance with applicable law
and |SAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board' s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members asabody in
accordance with Section 262 of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey

24 March 2016
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